United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

SIXTEENTH SESSION
Official Records

SECOND COMMITTEE, 770th

MEETING

§ Thursday, 30 November 1961,

l at 3.15 p.m,
<

NEW YORK

CONTENTS

(b) Establishment of a United Nations capital development

, Page fund: report of the Committee established by General
Agenda items 12, 28, 3 i
e oma M, 38, 20 A B bl Bunse Assembly resolution 1521 (XV) (A/4878, E/3514,
(chapters II, IV, V (sections II-V), VI E/AC.6/5R.305-309);
(paragraph 489) and VIII (paragraphs 650 (c) Accelerated flow of capital and technical assistance to
and 65’.1)) (continued) the developing countries: report of the Secretary-General
Econor:up development of under-developed (A/ 4906, E/355):
countries (conti : y !
(@) Industria(lw_—_odg:::f)%);nent and activities of (d) Land reform: interim report of the Secretary-General
lrtpbeldorgans of the United Nations in the (A/ 4850)
ield of industrialization; p . " . .
\ o , , Questions relating to international trade and commodities
b) Establishme

C Terslorett foo i’:{fgftj"ijmt’;; eEpae (A/4820 and Corr.2, E/3452/Rev.1, E/3466, E/3468,
mittee established by General Assembly E/ 3486, E/ 3497) (continued):
resolation 1521 (XV); (a) Strengthening and development of the world market and

(c) Accelerated flow of capital and technical improvement of the trade conditions of the economically
izls)loi'ttag?(i‘het%eéiitgfVecl}zpmf ]countz‘ies: less developed countries: report of the Economic and

-y-General; . ;

(i) Land reform: interim report of theSeceo Social Council (A/4885, E/3519, £/3520 and Add.1,
tary-General E/3530);

Questions relating to international trade and (b) Improvement of the terms of trade between the industrial

commodities (continued): ond the under-developed countries: report of the Economic

(a) Strengthening and development of the and Social Council
world market and improvement of the
trade conditions of the economically less Questions relating to science and technology (A/ 4820 and
deve.loped countries: report of the Eco- Corr.2) (continved):

) ?;I;;gvirgeigczoa; ?I?:H?;i:ms oF drde B {a) Development of scientific and technical co-operation and
tween the Industrial and the under-de- exchange of experience: report of the Secretary-General
veloped countries: report of the Economic (A/ 4904, E/3515);
and Social Council (b) Main trends of inquiry in the natural sciences, dissemi-

Qt;iirtzltoins g)elatz‘ng to science and technology nation of scientific knowledge and application of such

nued): ' ¢ q
tall Demntapmmad: o scleniits aufl flinfed kno.wledge fot peaceful ends: report of the Economic and
co-operation and exchange of experience: Social Council (A/4898)
report of the Secretary-General; CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT RESOLUTIONS (A/C.2/
(b) Main trends of inquiry in the natural L.558/REV.1) (continued)
Roomiadde azgi;’gj’ﬁgt;%fz By sieing 1. Mr. LINGAM (India) introduced the revised text
ledge for peaceful ends: report of the of the draft resolution entitled "Reaffirmation of
Economic and Social Coun.cﬂ General Assembly resolution 1522 (XV)on the accele-
Bomsiderafion of draft resolufions fean= rated flow of capital and technical assistance to tl3e
bimed] ’ .- 39y Yeveloping countries” (A/C.2/L.558/Rev.1). He said
SeEEA g m y e g me me s Rem B R RER T that a new fourth preambular paragraph had been

Chairman: Mr, Blasco LANZA D’AJETA (ltaly).

AGENDA ITEMS 12, 28, 29 AND 30

Report of the Economic and Social Council (chapters!l, 1V, V
(sections11-V), V1 (paragraph 489) and VIII (paragraphs 650
and 651)) (A/ 4820 and Corr.2, A/4911) (continued)

Economic development of under-developed countries (A/4820
and Corr.2) (continued):
(a) Industrial development and activities of the organs of the
United Nations in the field of industrialization;

added, using the same wording as the fourth pre-
ambular paragraph of General Assembly resolution
1522 (XV), in order to emphasize that the recipient
countries should take certain measures to encourage
the flow of capital, In fact, the less developed coun-
tries were making efforts in that direction, by at-
tempting to eliminate inequalities in income, concen-
trating on development and preparing the ground
psychologically for the influx of new capital. A new
fifth preambular paragraph had been added in order
to include the idea that economic development should
be the joint endeavour of all States, It had been
thought that mention should be made, in the seventh
preambular paragraph, of the information given in
the report of the Secretary-General (A/4906), and an

301 A/C.2/SR.770



302 General Assembly — Sixteenth Session — Second Committee

eighth preambular paragraph concerning the flow of
capital in the years 1951-1959 had been added. Cer-
tain minor changes had also been made in the second
and third preambular paragraphs. The new wording

of the latter paragraph emphasized the need to in- °
crease the rate of economic growth of the less de-

veloped countries.

2. Operative paragraph 1 had been altered in order
to reflect certain views which had been expressed, in
particular by the United Kingdom delegation, A refer-
ence was included to operative paragraph 2 of As-
sembly resolution 1522 (XV) and the language of the
earlier resolution had been adopted in the phrase
"approximately 1 per cent". In operative paragraph 3,
a reference was made to the Secretary-General in-
stead of to the Secretariat. Finally, the title of the
draft resolution had been altered.

3. It should be emphasized that the proposed target
for the net flow of capital and technical assistance to
the less developed countries in no way constituted a
levy on the incomes of the advanced countries. It
merely represented what was considered to be a
basic minimum, since it was essential that both
donor and recipient countries should know what aid
was needed and what was forthcoming. One of the
greatest handicaps of the less developed countries in
their economic planning was uncertainty about their
ability to obtain the requisite foreign exchange in
order to finance their plans. Various estimates had
been made of the external capital requirements of
the less developed countries, but it was impossible
accurately to determine them or the incomes of the
advanced countries. An absolute minimum flow of
capital was needed for aid from the advanced coun-~
tries to make an impact on the economies of the less
developed countries.

4. Mr. GREEN (New Zealand) wished to express a
reservation concerning the mention of any specific
percentage in the draft resolution. It was difficult to
establish a norm for the flow of capital and technical
assistance because of the complexity of the process
of development: it was impossible at any given stage
to judge whether or not development had been suc-
cessful from the attainment of a particular norm or
failure to obtain it. It could be seen from the Secre-
tary~General's report on the international flow of
long-term capital and official donations, 1951-1959
(A/4906) that the level of domestic capital formation
in the under-developed countries would be of crucial
importance in any future economic growth, such as
that envisaged in the draft resolution on the United
Nations Development Decade (A/C.2/L.599).

5. The aim of current surveys was to obtain an
over-all picture of the total flow of aid to the less
developed countries. General Assembly resolution
1522 (XV) referred to Assembly resolution 1034 (XI)
and Economic and Social Council resolution 780
(XXX), both of which attempted to promote that aim,
In view of that fact, the New Zealand delegation
wished to suggest that operative paragraph 2 of the
draft resolution should be amended to read as follows:

"Requests the Secretary-General to submit in-
formation so far as possible on both gross and net
flows of assistance in the course of making the
annual reports called for in paragraph 4 of General
Assembly resolution 1522 (XV) concerning progress
made towards the objectives of that resolution.®

6. Mr. MAHDAVI (Iran) thought that the substance
and language of the revised text were acceptable and

remedied the shortcomings of the first draft. He
hoped that the amendment proposed by the repre-
sentative of New Zealand would be accepted.

7. Mrs. WRIGHT (Denmark) said that, although

Denmark had not reached the goal of 1 per cent, it
had increased its assistance to the less developed
countries every year, especlally through the Ex-
panded Programme of Technical Assistance and the
Special Fund, The developed countries would find it
easier to adopt the draft resolution if some recogni-
tion of their efforts were included in the text. She
would therefore suggest that the words "which shows
a progressive increase during the period" should be
added at the end of the eighth preambular paragraph.

8. Mr. SMID (Czechoslovakia) said that his country
was firmly committed to a policy of increasing its
financial and technical assistance to the developing
countries. But it had serious doubts about operative
paragraph 1 because the figure of 1 per cent would be
applied to all countries uniformly, irrespective of
whether they had had colonies or not. Czechoslovakia
contributed more than 1 per cent of its national in-
come to the under-developed countries and intended
to increase that proportion. It knew from experience
what foreign monopolies were and had also suffered
enormous losses during the Second World War. For
that reason it had only begun to help the under-
developed countries during the 1950's. Czechoslovakia
had achieved its economic progress by its own efforts
and with the help of the Soviet Union and the other
socialist countries, It had had to overcome serious
difficulties but it had not secured its economic ad-
vancement by exploiting other countries.

9. Mr. CRITCHLEY (Australia) said that the scale
of Australia’'s assistance to the under-developed
countries was increasing and that for every million
of its population there were more than a thousand
Asian students in the country. The draft resolution
before the Committee referred to the less developed
countries, but Australia found itself in an intermedi-
ate category between them and the more advanced
States, It depended to a large.extent on exports of a
small range of agricultural products and was also a
capital importer, Most of its aid to theless developed
countries took the form of grants because it had little
capital available for overseas investment, There-
fore, Australia was not directly affected by the drait
resolution. It did not like the 1-per—cent formula, but
the revised text was a considerable improvement on
the original draft. The New Zealand amendment was
also an improvement.

10. Mr. KAKITSUBO (Japan) said that the inadequate
rate of economic growth of the less developed coun-
tries was not the only reason for the widening gap
between those countries and the more developed ones.
He would suggest therefore that, in the third pre-
ambular paragraph, the phrase "because of the inade-
quate rate of economic growth of the less developed
countries" might be omitted. In the sixth preambular
paragraph it was not clear to what rdevelopmental
capital" referred; that phrase did not appear in Gen-
eral Assembly resolution 1522 (XV). Perhaps the
sponsors might clarify the paragraph and bring it
closer into line with the corresponding paragrap.h of
resolution 1522 (XV). His delegation also had dlfﬁ;
culty in accepting the inclusion of the word "annual
In operative paragraph 1 and also with the 1-per-
cent formula itself. The necessary statistics were
not available for determining the combined national



770th meeting — 30 November 1961 303

incomes of the developed countries, In any case, it
seemed unjust to apply a uniform percentage to all
f:ountries regardless of their wealth, Japan was not
anﬁferent to the needs of the under-developed coun~-
tries and was doing everything it could to help them.
It was prepared to support the Danish and New Zea-
land oral amendments,

11. Mr. LINGAM (India) wished to make it clear that
the Sponsors of the draft resolution were by no means
attemgtmg to impose a rigid norm on the developed
countries. They were attempting to set a minimum
target and give some indication of the scale of assist-
ance necessary for engendering economic growth in
the 'under—developed countries. He agreed that the
statistical methods of assessing the national income
of the advanced countries were bound to vary, but the
figure of 1 per cent was approximate and took into
account not only the capacity of the under-developed
countries to absorb capital but also the burden that
would be placed on the more advanced countries. The
tajrget set was not unreasonable and should not give
rise to reservations, for the developed countries
were in a sense compelled to act together to help the
under-developed countries.

12, In reply to the Japanese representative, the
sponsors could not agree to delete the final phrase of
the third preambular paragraph because the inade-
quate rate of economic growth was in fact the pri-
mary cause of the gap between the developed and
under~developed countries. The inclusion of the
phrase "developmental capital" in the sixth pre-
ambular paragraph meant that capital was needed for
all types of development—agricultural, industrial,
social and so on, The sponsors did not object to the
inclusion of the Danish amendment, but at the end
of the seventh rather than the eighth preambular
paragraph, They also accepted the New Zealand
amendment,

13. Mr. WOULBROUN (Belgium) said that his coun-
try fully supported the principle of assisting the
under-developed countries. During 1960-1961 its
financial aid to the Congo had amounted to $113
million. Since the Congo had attained independence,
Belgium had provided technical assistance valued at
2,000 million Belgian francs. Belgium had also sent
900 teachers to the Congo in addition to those already
there before its independence,

14, Belgium doubted the value of making renewed
appeals at regular intervals to the more developed
countries and also maintained its reservations con-
cerning the 1-per—cent formula. Surely the industrial-
ized countries of the West were by now fully convinced
of the need to help the under-developed countries. It
was also important to take into account the important
role played by private capital, and especially of the
role played by IBRD, which not only provided loans to
the under-developed countries but also created an
atmosphere of international confidence.

15. In spite of its objections, the Belgian delegation
recognized that the text of the draft resolution had
been considerably improved.

16, Mr. VIAUD (France) said that the revised text
of the draft resolution was a distinct improvement on
the original version. His delegation was glad to note
that a new preambular paragraph had been included
which explicitly recognized the primary responsi-
hility of the less developed countries themselves for
their economic development. In emphasizing that

responsibility in his earlier comments on the draft,
it had been his intention not to deny the responsibility
of the advanced countries but to point out that no real
progress was possible without the determination to
achieve it on the part of the less developed countries.

17. The new wording of operative paragraph 1 still
offered some difficulties for his delegation, primarily
because of the vagueness of the notions of inter-
national assistance and national income on which it
was based. The Indian representative, in explaining
what the sponsors meant by combined national in-
comes, had referred to gross and net national in-
come, although all members of the Committee were
aware that both those terms had different meanings
depending on the degree of central control exercised
over the economy in question. In his delegation's
view, the text would be clearer and more acceptable
if the word "annual" in operative paragraph 1 were
deleted, as the Japanese representative had sug-
gested, and a reference made to operative para-
graph 1 of General Assembly resolution 1522 (XV),
in which the 1-per-cent goal had first been laid down,
rather than to operative paragraph 2.

18. Mr. CHAMMAS (Lebanon) was gratified that the
sponsors had accepted the New Zealand amendment,
which his delegation supported. While understanding
the reservations expressed by many representatives
with regard to the l-per-cent formula, he felt that,
in view of the needs of the less developed countries,
a l-per-cent target could not be regarded as over-
ambitious. He therefore hoped that the representa-
tives concerned would find their way to support the
paragraph, especially as the formula proposed was
extremely flexible, He was glad that the draft resolu-
tion contained an explicit reference to operative
paragraph 2 of General Assembly resolution 1522
(XV), which mentioned the desirability of channelling
an appropriate part of the flow of capital and techni-
cal assistance through the United Nations., Although
Lebanon was a capital-importing country and its
economy was based on private enterprise, he felt
that there had been some overemphasis in the Com-
mittee on the importance of private capital for the
development of the less developed countries. His
delegation regretted that there was no United Nations
development agency which could estimate the foreign
capital requirements of the developing countries and
co-ordinate the flow of assistance to them.

19. Mr. LINGAM (India), speaking for the sponsors
of the draft resolution, said that the 1-per-cent
formula was intended only as an indication of the
measure of assistance to be provided. By its very
nature, the formula was not a method for calculating
the exact outflow of capital to the last dollar. The
Secretariat did not have access to all the relevant
data and only after a period of years would it be able
to provide the Committee with precise information
regarding the outflow of capital. Moreover, the spon-
sors recognized that there were vicissitudes in the
fortunes even of affluent countries; it was not their
intention that the flow of international aid should be
computed annually and defaulters brought to the
notice of the General Assembly.

20. Mr. MALHOTRA (Nepal) said that the sponsors
of the draft resolution had accepted virtually all the
changes suggested, so that the draft had become an
almost complete repetition of General Assembly
resolution 1522 (XV). In fact, operative paragraph 1
of that resolution was repeated almost verbatim; his



304 General Assembly — Sixteenth Session — Second Committee

delegation therefore saw no need to refer once again
to that paragraph, as the French representative had
suggested, and considered the reference to operative
paragraph 2 entirely appropriate.

21, In spite of its repetitious nature, the draft
resolution still served the useful purpose of empha-
sizing the need for accelerating the flow of capital to
the less developed countries. The 1-per~cent formula
could not be construed as a kind of tax, since it ap-
plied to the combined national incomes of the ad-
vanced countries and not to any individual country. In
fact, the purpose of the resolution would be defeated
if countries which were already contributing more
than 1 per cent decided that they need not increase
their contributions further. The sponsors' purpose
was that all countries should strive to achieve the
over-all target laid down. From that point of view
also, the use of the word "annual" in operative para-
graph 1 could not be regarded as objectionable, as
what the sponsors had in mind was an average flow
of assistance,

22, The sponsors had agreed to accept the amend-
ment to operative paragraph 2 suggested orally by
the New Zealand representative with some minor
changes. The paragraph would thus read:

"Requests the Secretary-General to submit in-
formation so far as possible on both gross and net
flows of international assistance and capital, in the
course of making the annual reports called for in
paragraph 4 of General Assembly resolution 1522
(XV) concerning the progress made towards the
objectives of that resolution."

23. Mr. LAVRICHENKO (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) said it was his Government's view that all
the economically advanced countries should give
systematic aid to the less developed countries. How-
ever, in speaking of assistance, the past could not be

forgotten and all advanced countries should assume
an equal responsibility for providing help. It was
difficult, for example, to accept the idea that the
Netherlands, which had exploited Indonesia for 300
years, should provide the same amount of assistance
as other capitalist countries. The former colonial
Powers had a special moral responsibility to provide
assistance, and his country could not accept being
placed on the same footing as those Powers. Nor
could his delegation agree that mechanical percent-
ages in any way reflected the actual value of the
assistance offered to developing countries. The truly
disinterested assistance that the USSR had extended
and was extending to such countries asIndia, Afghani-
stan, and the United Arab Republic could not be
assessed in such terms, for the future benefits those
countries would derive from it were incalculable.
That assistance was not prompted by a desire to
make profits, and none of it went into armaments.
For those reasons, his delegation regarded the 1-per-
cent provision of the draft resolution as unfair and
unscientific. The assistance given to the developing
countries could be measured only in terms of the
responsibility of the donor countries and the real
effects of such assistance,

24, Mr. KLOOS (Netherlands) reserved his dele-
gation's right of reply to the Soviet representative's
remarks concerning the Netherlands.

25, The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on th'e draft
resolution (A/C.2/L.558/Rev.1), as orally revised,

26. Mr. SMID (Czechoslovakia) asked for a separate
vote on operative paragraph 1.

Operative paragraph 1 was adopted by 65 votes to
none, with 14 abstentions.

The revised draft resolution as a whole was adopted
by 71 votes to none, with 8 abstentions.

The meeting rose at 6.10 p.m,

Athho inUN,

77201—April 1962—=2,100





